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LICENSEE:
The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license.  The inspection consisted of selective examinations of 
procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector.  The inspection findings are as follows:

1. Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.

2. Previous violation(s) closed.

3. The violations(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-identified, 
non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise 
discretion, were satisfied.

4.

Non-cited violation(s) were discussed involving the following requirement(s):

During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being 
cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance 
with 10 CFR 19.11.
(Violations and Corrective Actions)

Statement of Corrective Actions
I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified.  This statement of 
corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken, 
date when full compliance will be achieved).  I understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.
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LICENSEE:
The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license.  The inspection consisted of selective examinations of
procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector.  The inspection findings are as follows:
1.
Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.
2.
Previous violation(s) closed.
3.
The violations(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-identified,
non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise
discretion, were satisfied.
4.
Non-cited violation(s) were discussed involving the following requirement(s):
During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requirements and are being
cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11.
(Violations and Corrective Actions)
Statement of Corrective Actions
I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified.  This statement of
corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken,
date when full compliance will be achieved).  I understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.
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	PROGRAM SCOPE PART 3: This was an announced remote initial inspection of a crop protection production company that was authorized by its NRC license to use sealed sources of cesium-137 (Cs-137) in fixed gauges to perform level measurements and nickel-63 (Ni-63) for sample analysis at its facility in Midland, Michigan.  The licensed materials was previously owned by the Dow Chemical Company which split into three different companies with three separate NRC licenses: Dupont (DDP Specialty Electronic Materials US), Corteva, and Dow.  All three companies remained at the same location inside the Dow Chemical Company in Midland, Michigan.  The licensee (Dow Agrosciences) possessed 22 fixed gauges (15 Ohmart, six Industrial Nuclear, and a Texas Nuclear) all containing Cs-137 sealed sources.  The licensee had one fixed gauge in storage.  The inspectors requested additional information about a fixed gauge (Industrial Nuclear SH-352) located in building 941 that had been manufactured without a shutter.  The licensee's follow up to the request identified that the gauge, which contained 5 mCi of Cs-137 had erroneously been tracked as an Industrial Nuclear SH-352 gauge, but was in fact an Industrial Nucleonics LS100 S-6 gauge is a generally licensed, manufactured without a shutter as described in the seal source and device registry.  This misidentification of the gauge was carried over from when the 3 licenses were under 1 license issued to Dow.  The inspectors verified that leak tests of all gauges were taken at the required 6-month interval and were sent to the vendor for analysis.  Licensee personnel also performed shutter checks and sealed source physical inventory every six months.  Gauge service and maintenance was performed by the manufacturer or a licensed vendor.  PERFORMANCE OBSERVATIONS:  This inspection was conducted virtually through the Zoom meeting and consisted of interviews with select licensee personnel, a review of select records, and an observation of select photographs of fixed gauges. Through Zoom meeting, the inspectors were able to observe the condition, labeling and postings of select fixed gauges.  The licensee described security of the gauges, and initial and annual radiation safety training.  The licensee also described the use of area dosimetry to demonstrate compliance with public dose limits and that no licensee personnel were likely to receive an annual dose in excess of 10% of regulatory limits.  The inspectors reviewed a selection of licensee records, including leak tests, shutter checks, lock-out/tag-out procedures, annual audit, and dosimetry.  Through interviews and demonstrations, the inspector found the licensee staff to be knowledgeable of radiation protection principles, licensee procedures, and NRC regulatory requirements.  No violations of NRC requirements were identified as a result of this inspection.
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